
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

APRIL 6, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

     INVOCATION /  Pastor Johnny Hunt of Celebration Church 

  

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / March 16, 2015                                                     

                                                 

PROCLAMATION:        Child Abuse Prevention Month / Ms. Jessica Ware / Care House 

 

PROCLAMATION:  Earth Day Mobile Bay 

 

CONGRATULATIONS: Bayside Academy Varsity and Junior Chess Team / State Champions 

 

                

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry             

            

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell   

Review minutes / March 16
th
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott   

Review minutes / March 16
th
  

    

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway   

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Davis  

Review minutes / March 30
th
  

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               APRIL 6, 2015                                            PAGE   2 
 

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

Review minutes / January 22
nd

  

Review Staff Report / March 26
th
 meeting 

MOTION:  Set a Public Hearing date for May 4, 2015 to consider ordinances amending the Land Use and 

Development Ordinance 2011-54 and approve advertising: 

 

1.)  Amending Section 40-7 / Self-Service Vending Machine Units 

Recommendation:      Unanimous favorable 

 

2.)  Creating a new Zoning District / B-2a, General Business Alternate District 

Recommendation:    Unanimous favorable 

   

 

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

VOTE:  RFP:   Selection of Firm  
               1.  Hatch Mott McDonald 

   2.  Volkert & Associates   

   3.  Lose & Associates 

   4.  Goodwin, Mills, Cawood, Inc 

               5.  Preble-Rish                   

 

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

Review minutes / February 25
th
  

 

6. MAYOR’S REPORT 

     1.)   Past Due Account FY2014 

 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

     YMCA Public Park and Recreation Board of the City of Daphne / Board Members 

 

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
     a.)  Events Permit / Bayside Medical Missions / Annual 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / September 19, 2015 

 

     b.)  ABC License / Manci’s Antique Club / 120 – Restaurant Retail Liquor 

 

     c.)  AL League Annual Business Session / May 18, 2015 / Tuscaloosa, AL 

 

     d.)  Three nominations for Board of Equalization by August 14, 2015      

  

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)    Resolution 2015-21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Disposition / 

                                                  1994 Caterpillar Dozer 

 

 

2



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               APRIL 6, 2015                                            PAGE   3 
 
 

 

       ORDINANCES:  

 

      2
ND

   READ   

a.) Ordinance 2015-15. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Pre-Zone Property Located on the Northeast of Public Works 

                                                                             Road and Rand Avenue / Jubilee Properties / From RSF-3,   

                                                                             Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15           

                                                                             to B-2, General Business District, City of Daphne 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-16. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation: Property Located on the Northeast of Public   

                                                                              Works Road and Rand Avenue //Jubilee Properties 

 

 

c.)  Ordinance 2015-17. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Amend the Land Use and Development Ordinance 2011-54 

                                                                               New Zoning District / Planned Unit Development 

 

 

 

d.) Ordinance 2015-18. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriating Funds:  Donette Loop Properties Drainage 

                                                                             Repair / Additional Appropriation 

 

e.)  Ordinance 2015-20. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Emergency Watershed Protection for:  

                                                                             Old Pump Station –LF / Judicial Center / Wacky Shrimp /  

                                                                             Palmetto-Creekside / Maizie Gulch-West Main Street / 

                                                                             Canterbury Subdivision 

 

f.)  Ordinance 2015-21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .City Hall Building Maintenance Appropriation:  City Hall Back  

                                                                            Door Card Reader Installation 

 

g.)  Ordinance 2015-22. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Design Engineering for Tallent Lane  

                                                                             Facility Landfill C&D ADEM Permit 

  

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                          

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  Pat Rudicell. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood (arrived at 6:35 p.m.); Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant 

City Clerk;  Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard Merchant, Building Official; James White, Fire Chief; 

Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David McKelroy, Recreation 

Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; David Carpenter, 

Police Chief; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant/Treasurer; Dorothy Morrison, DRA and Beautification 

Committee; Larry Cooke, BZA; Don Ouellette, Environmental Advisory Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; 

Heiko Einfeld, Executive Director of the ES Chamber of Commerce.  

 

Absent:  Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Tonja Young, Library Director; 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Bart Hare with Bay Community Church gave the invocation. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

March 2, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no amendments the March 2, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes were approved as written.  

 

March 9, 2015 Council Work Session Minutes 

There being no amendments the March 9, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes were approved as written. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:    

 

1.  Pre-Zoning:   Jubilee Properties 

     Property Located:  Northeast of Public Works Road and Rand Avenue 

   Present Zoning:  RSF-3, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County 

     District 15 

     Requested Zoning:  B-2, General Business, City of Daphne 

     Recommendation:             Favorable / Contingent upon the vacation of the fifteen-foot 

                                                easement to County Road 13, and Public Works Road 

 

 

 

 

5



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

Adrienne Jones gave the presentation.  The zoning change has no effect on the adjoining property.  

Properties are zoned B-2 to the north, east and south and this will fill in the gap.  There was opposition 

presented at the Planning Commission meeting, and they are present at the council meeting. 

 

Council President Conaway opened the Public Hearing at 6:38 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the pre-zoning request. 

 

Council President Conaway closed the Public Hearing at 6:39 p.m. 

 

 

  2.  Annexation:  Jubilee Properties 

       Property Located:  Northeast of Public Works Road and Rand Avenue 

 

       Recommendation: Favorable / Contingent upon the vacation of the fifteen-foot 

                                                easement to County Road 13, and Public Works Road 

 

Mrs. Jones said that the annexation received a favorable recommendation from the Planning Commission 

 

Council President Conaway opened the Public Hearing at 6:39 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the annexation request. 

 

Council President Conaway closed the Public Hearing at 6:39 p.m. 

 

 

  3.  Amend the Land Use and Development Ordinance 2011-54 / New Zoning District / 

       Planned Unit Development 

       Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable  

 

Adrienne Jones gave the presentation.  The amendment will be adding an additional zoning district where there 

can be mixed use in other parts of town instead of just in the Olde Towne District. The amendment received a 

favorable recommendation from the Planning Commission. 

 

Council President Conaway opened the Public Hearing at 6:46 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the annexation. 

 

Council President Conaway closed the Public Hearing at 6:46 p.m. 

 

6



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The minutes for the March 9
th

 meeting are in the packet, 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to release remaining funds appropriated in FY2014 through Ordinance 

2014-13 for Fire Station #3 in order to appropriate funds in FY2015 to cover total project cost. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to recommend to drop the Boardwalk coverage, maintain the light pole 

coverage, and acquire a mechanical breakdown policy for city property locations, and the savings from cancelling 

the Boardwalk coverage covering the cost of the new policy ($5,532).  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Treasurer’s Report / February 2015 

 

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $ 11,420,565                  

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 5.2 months 

compared to the previous year -  6  months 

 Total City Funds - $21,509,617 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / January 2015 

 

$1,023,171 was collected for January 2015 

 Monthly Variance over Budget  $22,263  /  +2.2 % of budget 

 Percent change from last year’s collections   +48,946 / 5%  

 

Lodging Tax Collections / January 2015 
 

$72,323 was collected which is up $29,125 from January’s 2014’s collections of $43,198.04.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:  $4,534;   - .2% 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  +40.3 % 

 

The reports were submitted for audit. 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Davis 

The minutes for the March 2
nd

 meeting are in the packet.  Mrs. Thigpen in her new position has her first big 

landing for the city the Alabama Baptist Association is holding its convention in the city.  The attorney’s 

continue to work on the lease with the Lake Forest Property Owners Association.  

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

7



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

The committee met before the council meeting, and there were several citizens who spoke regarding 

speeding in Lake Forest.  The next meeting will be April 20
th

.   

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to move forward with the hiring of Steven Henning as the Public Works 

Environmental Programs GIS Intern at a rate of $15.00/hr.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

The City Attorney, Mr. Ross, mentioned Council does not have the authority to hire somebody and fill the 

position.  The Council does have the right to fund the position, but the hiring for the position goes to the 

Mayor. 

 

Councilman Scott withdrew his motion and Councilman Davis withdrew his second. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to fund the position of Public Works Environmental Programs GIS 

Intern, and authorize the Public Works Director to offer up to $15.00 per hour for an intern for the 

summer quarter.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

Council President Conaway stated that the Authority needs one member, and if anyone is interest to send 

their resume to the city Clerk’s office. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be Monday, March 23
rd

 at 6:00 p.m.  The members will be discussing the latest 

project, and the latest data out shows that of existing space requests in Baldwin County 58% of those 

requests want to be close to I-10.  The City of Daphne has exit 35 and exit 38 that are very prominent in 

those plans.  There are a number of projects in the works.  Also, of the sites and interest 35% of them are 

interested in office space, and 23% are interested in mixed use which the PUD will work with these plans. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The minutes for the February 12
th

 meeting are in the packet.  He mentioned that the Mango languages, 

newspapers from around the world and the Rosetta Stone are available at the Library. The next meeting will 

be April 9
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

8



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to appoint Katherine Alsip to the Library Board / Term ending 

September 30, 2017 and to reappoint Jim Morris and Windrela Longmire to the Library Board / Term 

ending September 30, 2019.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Site Preview meeting will be Wednesday, March 18
th

 at 8:30 a.m., and the regular Planning Commission 

meeting will be Thursday, March 26
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

   F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The board met this past week, and the topic was the recreation proposals. The Recreation Board will present 

a letter of recommendation to council with no specific firm.  They will state what they want at the facilities.  

The next meeting will be April 8
th

, and hopefully, council will have a decision before that meeting.  They do 

not want to get past April without a decision.  Council can hold an extra meeting if necessary. 

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be March 25
th

 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood reported that starting tomorrow the north side of County Road 13 at County Road 64 will be 

closed for six to eight weeks.  The south side will be closed after the north side is completed.  The pre-audit 

is almost completed, and they are now working on the CAFR report.  There is an issue of a past due balance 

for a vendor in the amount of $115,000, which was discussed at the Finance meeting. There are two ways of 

handling the past due amount:  1.)  Write it off   2.)  Defer revenue to FY2015.  He needs input from council 

on how they want to handle the issue. 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider a motion to recommend to write this 

debt off in FY2014.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Lake   Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Fry   Aye     Davis   Nay 

Scott   Aye     Conaway  Aye 

 

AYE    Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway    NAY    Davis 

 

MOTION FAILS 

 

After discussion by Council the matter was deferred to the next council meeting. 

 

Mayor Haygood said he will supply information to the council regarding this issue. 

9



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 

Mr. Ross discussed the lease agreement with the Lake Forest Property Owners Association (LFPOA)  saying 

that he, Mr. Johnson and Adrienne Jones worked out the legal description for the area in which the city will 

lease the premises.  There is some concern by Councilman Davis, and maybe Mr. LeJeune which can be 

dealt with at this meeting or a subsequent meeting. 

 

Councilman Scott said that he has been working on this agreement from the beginning, and the 30 acres has 

not been maintained by the LFPOA as well as the local citizens would like, and if you look at New York’s 

Central Park the city could have something similar.  Lake Forest has agreed to let the city lease this land and 

have access to their parking lot on Country Club for parking and access to the property.  The city’s desire is 

to maintain the property, and initially put in some walking trails.  The folks in Lake Forest would probably 

like to see some fitness trails added with some other improvements.  The city is to pay for property tax if the 

city has to with a 30 year lease.  There is some question as to if the city has to or not, by the  city will 

certainly be able to negotiate with the Revenue Department as far as the value of the property since it is not a 

golf course now it is just raw land.  There are some topographical challenges with some wetland areas and 

drainage issues, etc. so he does not think the property taxes will be a major issue.  The agreement says it will 

be a 30 year lease at one dollar per year.  Either party can cancel the lease with a 180 day written notice.  The 

agreement also says that the LFPOA will reimburse the city for any improvements less depreciation.  It also 

says there are certain activities the city can have, basically, non-intense usage. Also in the agreement is a 

clause that says the LFPOA has to approve any activities that the city suggests with 45 days for LFPOA 

approval or else the City of Daphne can go ahead as deemed to be approved. 

 

Councilman LeJeune is concerned about the line that says the LFPOA has approval of projects.  There is a 

line that sights spoil sites, drainage, capital improvements and non-capital improvements, and his concern is 

about the installation and modification of recreational improvements. He thought it gave the LFPOA a lot 

more determination on even the smallest items.  It is kind-of vague.  

 

Mr. Ross replied that he had a discussion with their attorney and Kevin, and for the one dollar per year they 

wanted the reservation or right of control if they didn’t agree with the project.  It originally started out as 

capital projects that if the lease was terminated, and they had to pay the city back, and then it expanded to 

what is in the agreement.  They just wanted control over property owned by the LFPOA. 

 

Councilman LeJeune understands that, and he is in support of the project, but he has concerns for the city’s 

side that the city would be beholden to them asking them for the smallest items, and in that aspect, and with 

keeping with Mr. Scott’s wanting to move this along, he will make a motion to amend the agreement to set a 

dollar amount of anything over $50,000 in a calendar year.  That would give protection on major projects, 

but then if the city wanted to go in and put in something small like a walking path it keeps the city from 

waiting for them to approve something minimal.  It gives the city protection, and gives them protection from 

anything major. 

 

 

 

 

 

10



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to amend Article 3 Section (C) (toward the bottom of page 86 of the 

lease agreement with  the Lake Forest Property Owners Association) where it says “installation or 

modification of recreational improvements add over $50,000 in a calendar year”   Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway    NAY    Davis 

 

MOTION CARRIED  

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to authorize the Mayor to enter into a lease agreement with the Lake 

Forest Property Owners Association for the “Back Nine” Golf course as amended by Councilman 

LeJeune.  Seconded by LeJeune. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Lake   Abstain     LeJeune  Aye 

Fry   Nay      Davis   Nay 

Scott   Aye      Conaway  Aye 

 

AYE    Scott, LeJeune, Conaway  ABSTAIN   Lake   NAY    Davis 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – alerted everyone to a skimming scam that has taken place at a couple of 

banks.  He urged citizens to be careful using the ATM machines and credit cards at gas pumps, and to be 

observant. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported on the sports activities at Trione Sports Complex and Lott 

Park. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director -  reported on the upcoming events at the Civic Center. 

 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – invited council to the Employee Service Awards luncheon, 

and reported the current job postings. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported on the closing of north bound County Road 13. 

 

 

 

 

 

11



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:   

     a.)  ABC License / Bayside Academy / Annual Fundraiser / 240 Non-Profit Tax Exempt 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the ABC License / Bayside Academy / Annual 

Fundraiser / 240 Non-Profit Tax Exempt.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

     b.)  ABC License / Southern Napa / 140 – Special Events Retail       

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the ABC License / Southern Napa / Annual Fundraiser 

/ 140 Special Events Retail.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mrs. Dorothy Morrison – Daphne Beautification Committee - reported that she is working with the Mayor 

on the gateway signs and more gazebos, and affiliated with Keep America Beautiful she went to Washington, 

D.C. and Clanton, and the main focus was litter.  She said the city must enforce the litter ordinance.  She 

presented council with a “Litter-Gitter.” 

 

Mr. David Ringler – 49 Lakeshore Drive - thanked Mr. Scott for always keeping him informed.  He thanked 

Public Works for picking up litter, and thanked the city.  He spoke regarding the lease of the “Back Nine” 

Golf Course. 

 

Mr. Willie Robison – 560 Stuart Street – thanked Mrs. Conaway for using the front screen.  He commented 

on the Alabama Baptist Association Convention being held in Baldwin County for the first time in history. 

He thanked Council for the job they do. 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

a.)    Resolution 2015-14. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize Disposition 

 

b.)    Resolution 2015-15. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Declaring Certain Property Surplus & Authorize  

                                                                              Donation to Washington County & Baldwin County  

                                                                              Board Of Education / Trade School 

 

c.)    Resolution 2015-16. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Support for a Baldwin County Recycling Cooperative    

 

 

12



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

 

d.)    Resolution 2015-17. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Pre-Paid Travel / Adrienne Jones, Planning Director 

                                                                              2015 American Planning Assoc. National Planning                

                                                                              Conference / April 18-22, 2015 / Seattle, WA / $306 

 

e.)    Resolution 2015-18. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Bid Award: Donette Loop Drainage /  Sunset Contracting   

 

f.)    Resolution 2015-19. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Bid Award:  Renovations to Fire Station #3 / Eric Lazarri Const. 

 

g.)   Resolution 2015-20. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Contract Extension / Disaster Debris Removal & Disposal   

                                                                             Services 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-14, 2015-15, 2015-16, 

2015-17, 2015-18, 2015-19 and 2015-20. Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolutions 2015-14, 2015-15, 2015-16, 2015-17, 2015-18, 

2015-19 and 2015-20.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

        1
ST

  READ   

a.) Ordinance 2015-15. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Pre-Zone Property Located on the Northeast of Public Works 

                                                                             Road and Rand Avenue / Jubilee Properties / From RSF-3,   

                                                                             Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15           

                                                                             to B-2, General Business District, City of Daphne 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-16. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation: Property Located on the Northeast of Public   

                                                                              Works Road and Rand Avenue //Jubilee Properties 

 

 

c.)  Ordinance 2015-17. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Amend the Land Use and Development Ordinance 2011-54 

                                                                               New Zoning District / Planned Unit Development 

 

d.) Ordinance 2015-18. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriating Funds:  Donette Loop Properties Drainage 

                                                                             Repair / Additional Appropriation 

 

13



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
0

 

 

e.)  Ordinance 2015-19. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Fire Station #3 Renovations 

 

 

f.)  Ordinance 2015-20. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Emergency Watershed Protection for:  

                                                                             Old Pump Station –LF / Judicial Center / Wacky Shrimp /  

                                                                             Palmetto-Creekside / Maizie Gulch-West Main Street / 

                                                                             Canterbury Subdivision 

 

g.)  Ordinance 2015-21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .City Hall Building Maintenance Appropriation:  City Hall Back  

                                                                            Door Card Reader Installation 

 

h.)  Ordinance 2015-22. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Design Engineering for Tallent Lane  

                                                                             Facility Landfill C&D ADEM Permit 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2015-19.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Lake   Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Fry   Aye     Davis   Aye 

Scott   Aye     Conaway  Aye 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-19.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-19.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

ORDINANCES 2015-15, 2015-16, 2015-17, 2015-18, 2015-20, 2015-21 AND 2015-22 WERE 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

 

 

 

14



MARCH 16, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
1

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
Councilman Fry thanked everyone for coming out, and encouraged everyone to come out for the Sunset Series 

Concerts.  He is in favor of leasing the Lake Forest property, and thinks it is a great opportunity. 

 

Councilman Scott thanked Council for authorizing the Mayor to enter into the lease agreement with the Lake Forest 

Property Owners Association, and thanked everyone for coming out. 

 

Councilman LeJeune thanked Public Works for the first bit of sidewalks being laid down in Lake Forest. He said the 

lease agreement is an asset for the whole city not just Lake Forest.  Children need a big area for activities, and the city 

is lacking an open space park. 

 

Councilman Davis said he is in favor of the Lake Forest project, but he is not used to making deals without numbers.  

He thanked Mrs. Morrison for the “Litter-Gitter”.  He said it is two weeks until the election for schools and encouraged 

all to get the facts, and vote on how to handle the growth of the schools. 

 

Councilman Lake said he was in Washington for the NLC conference and there are several bills up for passage, and 

one is the Market Place Sales Tax which will allow communities to collect sales tax from the internet.   

 

Mayor Haygood – commented on the fun activities held in the city last weekend.  He spoke regarding Build Baldwin 

Now and encouraged citizens to come vote equipped with the facts.  April 5
th
 is Easter and he wished everyone a happy 

Easter.  He mentioned that Daphne Methodist Church will have a Sunrise Service at Bayfront Park on Easter Sunday. 

 

Council President Conaway reminded everyone that the Lupus Walk is this weekend. 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:19 

P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk       Council President 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



 

 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, March 16, 2015 

City Hall Executive Conference Room 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman    Councilwoman Tommie Conway 

Councilman Randy Fry     Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Pat Rudicell     Councilman Joe Davis 

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 

Members Present:  Ron Scott; Randy Fry; Pat Rudicell; Robin LeJeune; Tommie Conaway; 

John Lake; Joe Davis. 

 

Also Present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk and recording secretary; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director. 

 

II. APPROVE MINUTES / February 16, 2015 

There were no  corrections to the February 16, 2015 minutes and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

IV. ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

Discuss:  Junk Advertising 

The committee discussed the issue of unwanted junk advertising being thrown in citizen’s 

driveways.  The committee wants to wait and see the outcome of Mobile’s ordinance prohibiting 

junk advertising.  Mr. Ross will monitor the situation, and keep the committee updated on the 

progress of the ordinance. 

 

a.)  Discuss:  Ordinance to uphold Historic Designation by the County for 

annexation with such designation 

The committee discussed the county doing an additional review of plans before issuing a site 

permit. 

 

Mr. Ross suggested talking with the Baldwin  County Commission attorney David Connor. 

 

The committee requested Mr. Ross to contact Mr. Connor regarding this issue. 

24



 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE                                      MARCH 16, 2015 Page 2 

 

 

Mr. Ross said they could get an Attorney General’s Opinion. 

 

It was suggested that they need to consider how it affects the commercial development, and have 

the most restrictive sign regulations apply.  

 

  

V. ANY OTHER BUSINESS DEEMED NECESSARY 

There was no other business to discuss. 

 

VI. NEXT MEETING /  April 20, 2015 

 

VII. ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 6:14 P.M. 

25



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

MARCH 30, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 1 of 2 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

There being a quorum present the chairman called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT – Toni Fassbender; Denis Kearney, III; Doug Bailey; Jeffrey Ramsland, Dan 

Romanchuk. 

 

Absent:  Pokey Miller; John Cox. 

 

Also present –  Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Councilman Joe Davis, Council Liaison; John Peterson; 

Jennifer Jenkins, Jessica Peterson (both with JJ PR). 

 

2. APPROVE MINUTES / February 23, 2015  

 

MOTION BY Jeff Ramsland to approve the February 23, 2015 meeting minutes as written.  Seconded 

by Denis Kearney. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

 

4.   TREASURER’S REPORT 

Cash balance   $399,000.86 

Receivable Check  $   9,402.00 

                                     

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to accept the Treasurer’s report as presented.  Seconded by Denis Kearney. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

5.   OLD BUSINESS 

      1.)  Proposed Commercial Park Project 

            a.) Logo for the Proposed Commercial Park 

Ms. Jennifer Jenkins and Jessica Peterson made a presentation of logos for the proposed commercial park. 

They presented nine concepts. 

 

MOTION BY Denis Kearney to approve concept #8 as the logo for the proposed commercial park with 

revisions as discussed.  Seconded by Doug Bailey. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

26



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

MARCH 30, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

                 b.)   Commercial Park Economic Impact of Development Study  

The members discussed the study done by Semoon Chang to see what impact the commercial park would have 

on the surrounding areas.   

 

The IDB members will make a presentation at the April 13
th
 council work session. 

 

6.  NEW BUSINESS   

No new business. 

 

7.   REPORT FROM BALDWIN COUNTY ECONOMIC ALLIANCE 

No report. 

 

8.   OTHER BUSINESS 

No other business to discuss. 

 

9.   NEXT MEETING        

The next meeting will be April 27, 2015 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Jeff Ramsland to adjourn.  Seconded by Doug Bailey. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

The board adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 

 

 

 

Submitted by:      Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, Secretary    Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 

SET PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR 

 

MAY 4, 2015 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 
 

 

 1.  Amending the Land Use & Development Ordinance 2011-54 / Section 40-7 / Self-    

      Service Vending Machine Units Signage 

 

      Recommendation:             Unanimous favorable  

 

 

  2.  Amending the Land Use & Development Ordinance 2011-54 / New Zoning  

       District B-2a, General Business Alternate District 

 

        Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable  
 

 

 

 

 

        

   

 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



RESOLUTION 2015 - 21 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
 

  DEPT EQ/VEH# DESCRIPTION     VIN

Street 300 1994 CATERPILLER  D5C DOZER 9DL00693  
 
 

          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder and sign all necessary                       
               documents. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2015. 
           
      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

 

77



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-15 

  

   

Ordinance to Pre-Zone Property Located  

Property Located on the Northeast of Public Works Road and Rand Avenue 

Jubilee Properties 

 

 
 WHEREAS, Jubilee Properties as the owner of certain real property located within the 

unincorporated area of Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be pre-zoned from 

RSF-3, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to B-2, General Business District, 

City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is located northeast of Public Works Road and Rand Avenue, and 

more particularly described as follows:  

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE PREZONED TO B-2: 
 

PARCEL “A” 
FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, T-
5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE 
SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN 
NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 746.50 FEET TO THE SIMS 
SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 
PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST 
A DISTANCE OF 181.65 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41”  WEST, A DISTANCE OF 166.11 FEET TO A SIMS 
SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; SOUTH 89° 38’ 56” EAST A DISTANCE OF 182.55 
FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00° 02’ 59” 
EAST A DISTANCE OF 166.08 FEET TO THE SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR 
AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.69 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 
TOGETHER WITH AN EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND 
ACROSS THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY TO-WIT: FROM THE 
RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE EXISTING AND LOCALLY ACCEPTED SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE 
RUN NORTH ALONG THE SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO 
A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY 
NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID 
HIGHWAY, A DISTANCE OF 58.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 
EASEMENT HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88° 32’ 21” WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 174.48 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76° 05’ 33” WEST 
A DISTANCE OF 213.94 FEET TO A POINT OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ABOVE 
DESCRIBED PROPERTY; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST ALONG SAID 
SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 728.07 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED 
REBAR; THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO 
A POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89° 39’ 18” EAST A DISTANCE OF 726.67 FEET 
TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 76° 05’ 33” EAST A DISTANCE OF 213.72 
FEET TO A PETER G. GARSED CAPPED REBAR; RUN NORTH 88° 32’ 21” EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 176.19 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT O WAY LINE OF 
BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN SOUTH A DISTANCE OF 
15.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 

78



 
ORDINANCE 2015-15                              PRE-ZONE JUBILEE PROPERTIES                               PAGE   2                        

 
 
 

PARCEL “B” 
PARCEL ONE AND 2 AS DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NUMBER 703710. LESS 
AND EXCEPT THE WESTERN 11.2 FEET, MORE OR LESS, IN USE AS PART OF 
PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE A PAVED 60 FOOT WIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY.  MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AS A RAILROAD 
SPIKE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 
RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, RUN THENCE NORTH ALONG 
THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION A DISTANCE OF 1329.3 FEET TO A 

POINT;  THENCE RUN NORTH 8956’48” WEST, 40.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR 
ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF AUSTIN PLACE COMMERCIAL PARK, UNIT 3, AS 
RECORDED ON SLIDE 2064-A, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, 

BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA;  THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 8956’48”  
WEST ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY 927.34 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR AT 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 
564669, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, 
ALABAMA, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING;  THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 

8956’48” WEST ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF AUSTIN PLACE 
COMMERCIAL PARK PHASE 2, AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 1886-A, IN THE OFFICE 
OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, A DISTANCE OF 
352.77 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE;  THENCE RUN NORTH 0002’14” EAST ALONG SAID 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 165.85 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR;  THENCE RUN SOUTH 

8956’14” EAST,  352.74 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 564669, IN THE 
OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE 

RUN SOUTH 0001’37” WEST ALONG THE WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL A 
DISTANCE OF 165.82 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  SAID PARCEL OF 
LAND CONTAINS 1.34 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  TOGETHER WITH AND 
SUBJECT TO AN EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND ACROSS 
THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY TO WIT:  FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE 
EXISTING AND LOCALLY ACCEPTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, T-
5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE 
SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 
89° 39’ 18” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH 
ALONG THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID HIGHWAY, A DISTANCE OF 
58.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE EASEMENT HEREIN 
DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88° 32’ 21” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 174.48 
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76° 05’ 33” WEST A DISTANCE OF 
213.94 FEET TO A POINT OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED 
PROPERTY; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A 
DISTANCE OF 728.07 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 
RUN SOUTH 89° 39’ 18” EAST A DISTANCE OF 726.67 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 76° 05’ 33” EAST A DISTANCE OF 213.72 FEET TO A PETER G. 
GARSED CAPPED REBAR; RUN NORTH 88° 32’ 21” EAST A DISTANCE OF 176.19 
FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT O WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY 
HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN SOUTH A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

 

WHEREAS, at the City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on January 22, 2015, 

the Commission considered said request and a unanimous favorable recommendation was made 

contingent upon the vacation of the fifteen-foot easement to County Road 13, and providing 

future access from Parcel “A” to Public Works Road; and, 

79



 
ORDINANCE 2015-15                              PRE-ZONE JUBILEE PROPERTIES                               PAGE   3                        

 

 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City 

Hall, and a public hearing was held before the City Council on March 16, 2015; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-

zoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby pre-zoned from RSF-3, Single Family 

Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to B-2, General Business District, City of 

Daphne and that the zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning 

change. 
 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or 

impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each 

other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE AND EXPIRATION DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance, and in particular the pre-zoning shall take effect after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  Pursuant 

to Code of Alabama (1975) Section 11-52-85, the zoning of the property, shall become effective 

upon the date the territory is annexed into the corporate limits, if any portion of the territory is 

not annexed into the corporate limits within 180 days of the initiation of annexation proceedings 

as provided by law then this pre-zoning shall be null and void. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

80



 
ORDINANCE 2015-15                              PRE-ZONE JUBILEE PROPERTIES                          PAGE   4 
 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                    , 2015.                              
 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

81



 

  Page 2 of 2 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 
 

PRE-ZONING REQUEST 
JUBILEE PROPERTIES LLC 

 
 
 

PARCEL “A” 
FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, 
BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 
1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 746.50 FEET TO THE SIMS SURVEYING 
CAPPED REBAR AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; 
THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 181.65 FEET TO A SIMS 
SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41”  WEST, A DISTANCE OF 166.11 
FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; SOUTH 89° 38’ 56” EAST A DISTANCE OF 182.55 
FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00° 02’ 59” EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 166.08 FEET TO THE SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR AT THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.69 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, TOGETHER WITH AN EASEMENT FOR 
INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND ACROSS THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY TO-WIT: 
FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE EXISTING AND LOCALLY ACCEPTED SOUTHEAST CORNER 
OF SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE 
SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN 
COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 
SAID HIGHWAY, A DISTANCE OF 58.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE EASEMENT 
HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88° 32’ 21” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 174.48 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76° 05’ 33” WEST A DISTANCE OF 213.94 FEET TO A POINT OF THE 
SOUTH LINE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST 
ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 728.07 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN 
SOUTH 89° 39’ 18” EAST A DISTANCE OF 726.67 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 76° 05’ 
33” EAST A DISTANCE OF 213.72 FEET TO A PETER G. GARSED CAPPED REBAR; RUN NORTH 
88° 32’ 21” EAST A DISTANCE OF 176.19 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT O WAY LINE OF 
BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN SOUTH A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
 
 
 

PARCEL “B” 
PARCEL ONE AND 2 AS DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NUMBER 703710. LESS AND EXCEPT THE 
WESTERN 11.2 FEET, MORE OR LESS, IN USE AS PART OF PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE A PAVED 60 
FOOT WIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY.  MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING 
AS A RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 
RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, RUN THENCE NORTH ALONG THE EAST 
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION A DISTANCE OF 1329.3 FEET TO A POINT;  THENCE RUN NORTH 

8956’48” WEST, 40.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF AUSTIN 
PLACE COMMERCIAL PARK, UNIT 3, AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 2064-A, IN THE OFFICE OF THE 

JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA;  THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 8956’48”  

82



 

  Page 2 of 2 

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS             PRE-ZONING REQUEST          JUBILEE PROPERTIES LLC 
 
 
 
WEST ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY 927.34 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR AT THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 564669, IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING;  THENCE 

CONTINUE NORTH 8956’48” WEST ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF AUSTIN PLACE 
COMMERCIAL PARK PHASE 2, AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 1886-A, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE 
OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, A DISTANCE OF 352.77 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR 

ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE;  THENCE RUN NORTH 0002’14” 
EAST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 165.85 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR;  THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 8956’14” EAST,  352.74 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 564669, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 0001’37” WEST ALONG THE 
WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL A DISTANCE OF 165.82 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
SAID PARCEL OF LAND CONTAINS 1.34 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  TOGETHER WITH AND 
SUBJECT TO AN EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND ACROSS THE FOLLOWING 
PROPERTY TO WIT:  FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE EXISTING AND LOCALLY ACCEPTED 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN 
NORTH ALONG THE SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN 
NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY 
LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE WEST RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF SAID HIGHWAY, A DISTANCE OF 58.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF 
THE EASEMENT HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88° 32’ 21” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
174.48 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76° 05’ 33” WEST A DISTANCE OF 213.94 FEET 
TO A POINT OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY; THENCE RUN NORTH 
89° 39’ 18” WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 728.07 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING 
CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89° 39’ 18” EAST A DISTANCE OF 726.67 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 76° 05’ 33” EAST A DISTANCE OF 213.72 FEET TO A PETER G. GARSED CAPPED 
REBAR; RUN NORTH 88° 32’ 21” EAST A DISTANCE OF 176.19 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST 
RIGHT O WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN SOUTH A DISTANCE 
OF 15.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

83



84



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2015-16  

 

 

ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

Property Located Northeast of Public Works Road and Rand Avenue 

Jubilee Properties 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 12

th
 day of December, 2014, being the owner of all real property hereinafter 

described, did file with the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed 

into and become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the described territory and a 

map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on March 16, 

2015 concerning the petition for annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne at a 

meeting on January 22, 2015 and an unanimous favorable recommendation was made contingent upon the 

vacation of the fifteen-foot easement to County Road 13, and providing future access from Parcel “A” to 

Public Works Road; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 

 

 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares as the legislative body of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama 

and the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in Section Two of this Ordinance into 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, and it did further determine that all legal requirements for annexing said 

real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24, et seq., Code of Alabama, 

1975; effective on publication as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 

 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered or 

rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before encompassed by the corporate limits of the City 

of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 

 
PARCEL “A” 

FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, THENCE RUN 
NORTH ALONG THE SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 40.00 
FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN 
COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A 
DISTANCE OF 746.50 FEET TO THE SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR 
AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN 
DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE 
OF 181.65 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN 

85



ORDINANCE 2015-16                          ANNEXATION  / JUBILEE PROPERTIES                          PAGE   2 

 
NORTH 00° 21’ 41”  WEST, A DISTANCE OF 166.11 FEET TO A SIMS 
SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; SOUTH 89° 38’ 56” EAST A DISTANCE OF 
182.55 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN 
SOUTH 00° 02’ 59” EAST A DISTANCE OF 166.08 FEET TO THE SIMS 
SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 
CONTAINING 0.69 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, TOGETHER WITH AN 
EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND ACROSS THE 
FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY TO-WIT: FROM THE RAILROAD 
SPIKE AT THE EXISTING AND LOCALLY ACCEPTED SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; 
THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 
1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY 
LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH 
ALONG THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID HIGHWAY, A 
DISTANCE OF 58.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 
EASEMENT HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88° 32’ 21” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 174.48 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
76° 05’ 33” WEST A DISTANCE OF 213.94 FEET TO A POINT OF THE 
SOUTH LINE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY; THENCE RUN 
NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 
728.07 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN 
NORTH 00° 21’ 41” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE RUN SOUTH 89° 39’ 18” EAST A DISTANCE OF 726.67 FEET TO 
A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 76° 05’ 33” EAST A DISTANCE OF 213.72 
FEET TO A PETER G. GARSED CAPPED REBAR; RUN NORTH 88° 32’ 21” 
EAST A DISTANCE OF 176.19 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT O 
WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN 
SOUTH A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 
 

PARCEL “B” 
PARCEL ONE AND 2 AS DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NUMBER 703710. 
LESS AND EXCEPT THE WESTERN 11.2 FEET, MORE OR LESS, IN USE 
AS PART OF PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE A PAVED 60 FOOT WIDE RIGHT-OF-
WAY.  MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
COMMENCING AS A RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, 
ALABAMA, RUN THENCE NORTH ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID 
SECTION A DISTANCE OF 1329.3 FEET TO A POINT;  THENCE RUN 

NORTH 8956’48” WEST, 40.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR ON THE 
NORTH BOUNDARY OF AUSTIN PLACE COMMERCIAL PARK, UNIT 3, AS 
RECORDED ON SLIDE 2064-A, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF 
PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA;  THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 

8956’48” WEST ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY 927.34 FEET TO A 
CAPPED REBAR AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE PARCEL 
DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 564669, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE 
OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, FOR THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING;  THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 8956’48” WEST ALONG THE 
NORTH BOUNDARY OF AUSTIN PLACE COMMERCIAL PARK PHASE 2, 
AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 1886-A, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF 
PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, A DISTANCE OF 352.77 FEET 
TO A CAPPED REBAR ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PUBLIC 

WORKS DRIVE;  THENCE RUN NORTH 0002’14” EAST ALONG SAID 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 165.85 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR;  THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 8956’14” EAST,  352.74 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR AT THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT 
NO. 564669, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 0001’37” WEST ALONG THE 
WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL A DISTANCE OF 165.82 FEET TO 

86



ORDINANCE 2015-16                          ANNEXATION  / JUBILEE PROPERTIES                          PAGE   2 

 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  SAID PARCEL OF LAND CONTAINS 1.34 
ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  TOGETHER WITH AND SUBJECT TO AN 
EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND ACROSS THE 
FOLLOWING PROPERTY TO WIT:  FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE 
EXISTING AND LOCALLY ACCEPTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 
16, T-5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 
ALONG THE SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO 
A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY 
HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE WEST RIGHT OF 
WAY LINE OF SAID HIGHWAY, A DISTANCE OF 58.17 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE EASEMENT HEREIN DESCRIBED; 
THENCE RUN SOUTH 88° 32’ 21” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 174.48 FEET TO 
A POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76° 05’ 33” WEST A DISTANCE OF 213.94 
FEET TO A POINT OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED 
PROPERTY; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH 
LINE A DISTANCE OF 728.07 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED 
REBAR; THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89° 39’ 18” EAST A DISTANCE 
OF 726.67 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 76° 05’ 33” EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 213.72 FEET TO A PETER G. GARSED CAPPED REBAR; 
RUN NORTH 88° 32’ 21” EAST A DISTANCE OF 176.19 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE WEST RIGHT O WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 
13; THENCE RUN SOUTH A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

  

SECTION THREE:   MAP OF PROPERTY 

 

The property hereby annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama is set forth and described in Exhibit 

“A” and attached hereto a map of the property (Exhibit “B”) showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION FOUR: PUBLICATION 

 

 This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-21 Code of Alabama 1975, as 

amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed into the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, and a certified copy of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 

County, Alabama as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS THE ________ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 
 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

87



 

  Page 2 of 2 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS 
 

ANNEXATION REQUEST 
JUBILEE PROPERTIES LLC 

 
 
 

PARCEL “A” 
FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, 
BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 
1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 746.50 FEET TO THE SIMS SURVEYING 
CAPPED REBAR AT THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; 
THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST A DISTANCE OF 181.65 FEET TO A SIMS 
SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41”  WEST, A DISTANCE OF 166.11 
FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; SOUTH 89° 38’ 56” EAST A DISTANCE OF 182.55 
FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00° 02’ 59” EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 166.08 FEET TO THE SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR AT THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.69 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, TOGETHER WITH AN EASEMENT FOR 
INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND ACROSS THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY TO-WIT: 
FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE EXISTING AND LOCALLY ACCEPTED SOUTHEAST CORNER 
OF SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE 
SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” 
WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALDWIN 
COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 
SAID HIGHWAY, A DISTANCE OF 58.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE EASEMENT 
HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88° 32’ 21” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 174.48 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76° 05’ 33” WEST A DISTANCE OF 213.94 FEET TO A POINT OF THE 
SOUTH LINE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY; THENCE RUN NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST 
ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 728.07 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING CAPPED REBAR; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN 
SOUTH 89° 39’ 18” EAST A DISTANCE OF 726.67 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN NORTH 76° 05’ 
33” EAST A DISTANCE OF 213.72 FEET TO A PETER G. GARSED CAPPED REBAR; RUN NORTH 
88° 32’ 21” EAST A DISTANCE OF 176.19 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT O WAY LINE OF 
BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN SOUTH A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
 
 
 

PARCEL “B” 
PARCEL ONE AND 2 AS DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NUMBER 703710. LESS AND EXCEPT THE 
WESTERN 11.2 FEET, MORE OR LESS, IN USE AS PART OF PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE A PAVED 60 
FOOT WIDE RIGHT-OF-WAY.  MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING 
AS A RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 
RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, RUN THENCE NORTH ALONG THE EAST 
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION A DISTANCE OF 1329.3 FEET TO A POINT;  THENCE RUN NORTH 

8956’48” WEST, 40.00 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR ON THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF AUSTIN 
PLACE COMMERCIAL PARK, UNIT 3, AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 2064-A, IN THE OFFICE OF THE 

JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA;  THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 8956’48”  

88



 

  Page 2 of 2 

LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS             PRE-ZONING REQUEST          JUBILEE PROPERTIES LLC 
 
 
 
WEST ALONG SAID NORTH BOUNDARY 927.34 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR AT THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 564669, IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING;  THENCE 

CONTINUE NORTH 8956’48” WEST ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDARY OF AUSTIN PLACE 
COMMERCIAL PARK PHASE 2, AS RECORDED ON SLIDE 1886-A, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE 
OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, A DISTANCE OF 352.77 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR 

ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE;  THENCE RUN NORTH 0002’14” 
EAST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 165.85 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR;  THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 8956’14” EAST,  352.74 FEET TO A CAPPED REBAR AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 
THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 564669, IN THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN SOUTH 0001’37” WEST ALONG THE 
WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL A DISTANCE OF 165.82 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
SAID PARCEL OF LAND CONTAINS 1.34 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  TOGETHER WITH AND 
SUBJECT TO AN EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER AND ACROSS THE FOLLOWING 
PROPERTY TO WIT:  FROM THE RAILROAD SPIKE AT THE EXISTING AND LOCALLY ACCEPTED 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 16, T-5-S, R-2-E, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN 
NORTH ALONG THE SECTION LINE A DISTANCE OF 1329.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN 
NORTH 89° 39’ 18” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY 
LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN NORTH ALONG THE WEST RIGHT 
OF WAY LINE OF SAID HIGHWAY, A DISTANCE OF 58.17 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF 
THE EASEMENT HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88° 32’ 21” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
174.48 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 76° 05’ 33” WEST A DISTANCE OF 213.94 FEET 
TO A POINT OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY; THENCE RUN NORTH 
89° 39’ 18” WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 728.07 FEET TO A SIMS SURVEYING 
CAPPED REBAR; THENCE RUN NORTH 00° 21’ 41” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 15.00 FEET TO A 
POINT; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89° 39’ 18” EAST A DISTANCE OF 726.67 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 76° 05’ 33” EAST A DISTANCE OF 213.72 FEET TO A PETER G. GARSED CAPPED 
REBAR; RUN NORTH 88° 32’ 21” EAST A DISTANCE OF 176.19 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST 
RIGHT O WAY LINE OF BALDWIN COUNTY HIGHWAY NO. 13; THENCE RUN SOUTH A DISTANCE 
OF 15.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

89



90



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-17 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA  

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 2011-54, AS ADOPTED BY THE  

CITY COUNCIL ON JULY 18, 2011 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROVISIONS 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes 

that certain revisions to the City of Daphne Land Use & Development Ordinance are necessary 

for the proper administration of said Ordinance; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at its regular 

meeting held on December 18, 2014, considered certain proposed amendments to the City of 

Daphne Land Use & Development Ordinance, Ordinance 2011-54, and any amendments to the 

same; and,  

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne Planning Commission reviewed such changes at its 

regularly scheduled Commission meeting on the 18
th

 day of December, 2014, and has made a 

favorable recommendation for adoption to the City Council; and, 

 WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendment has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City 

Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on March 16, 2015. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION I:   THIS SECTION HEREBY AMENDS ARTICLE 8, DEFINITION OF 

TERMS, OF THE LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE BY ADDING THE 

FOLLOWING DEFINITIONS: 

Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning district.  A zoning district intended to provide an 

opportunity for a land development process with the greatest flexibility available to the 

developer, consistent with the provisions of the Land Use & Development ordinance, and the 

PUD General Plan for the subject property. 

Planned Unit Development.  Land development guided by a total design plan in which one or 

more of the zoning or subdivision regulations, may be waived or varied to allow flexibility and 

creativity in site and building design and location in accordance with general guidelines.   

PUD General Plan.  The PUD General Plan consists of a narrative description and map(s) upon 

which the permitted uses, conditional uses, and site development regulations for a planned unit 

development are established.      

91



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 2 of 11 
 

PUD Documents.  A collection of documents including a narrative description of the PUD 

General Plan, associated maps, etc. that depict proposed site development, which the City will 

rely upon to formulate decisions regarding PUD zoning and land development.  The PUD 

documents shall be the zoning control for features depicted graphically on the PUD General Plan 

map.   

Sketch Plan. An informal plan indicating existing features of a tract and its surroundings, 

including the general layout of a proposed development or subdivision.  

Modified Master Plan.  A land development scheme authorized by the appropriate body to 

change the PUD General plan previously approved by the Planning Commission. 

Integral Land Use Unit.  A community comprised of residential developments of multiple or 

mixed housing types, including multi-family dwellings, attached and detached single-family 

dwellings, or office parks or complexes, commercial uses, service centers, or any appropriate 

combination of uses which may be planned, developed or operated as a PUD. 

Detailed Plans.  Either a site plan or subdivision plat. 

SECTION II:  THIS SECTION HEREBY AMENDS ARTICLE 12, 

ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS, AND THE TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE 

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE AS FOLLOWS:   

A. Article 12, Establishment of Districts, shall be amended to include Section12-8, Planned 

Unit Development District. 

B. The Table of Contents shall be amended to include the PUD zoning district and to 

include Appendix P as the PUD application. 

SECTION III:  THIS SECTION HEREBY DELETES IN ITS ENTIRETY ARTICLE 

30, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PROVISIONS, OF THE LAND USE AND 

DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE AND REPLACES IT WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

ARTICLE 30, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROVISIONS 

30-1 General   

The Planned Unit Development (PUD) District is designed to permit flexible 

development of projects which are comprehensively planned as a single development 

with a functional master development plan which fully considers the entire site as an 

integrated project and gives broad consideration to impacts and relationships to 

surrounding areas.  The PUD District permits flexibility in locating buildings, mixtures of 

building types, land uses and open spaces. In permitting such flexibility, the City Council 

should consider goals in the City comprehensive plan and other broad public benefits 

demonstrated in a master development plan. Upon recommendation by the Planning 

92



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 3 of 11 
 

Commission or with sufficient cause, the City Council may attach conditions to a master 

development plan proposed for a PUD to safeguard the public health, safety, morals and 

general welfare of the City of Daphne. 

In theory, a PUD zoned development, could modify (increase or decrease) the minimum 

setbacks, lot area and lot width, increase building height,  minimum sidewalk and street 

standards, minimum parking requirements,  while providing a  more desirable area for 

open space and amenities for public and private use.  Where such flexibility is permitted 

as established in this section and in the subdivision regulations, PUD project design and 

construction shall follow a PUD General Plan which shall be prepared in accordance with 

the development procedure prescribed in this Article.  Where PUDs are permitted, 

regulations adapted to the unified development are intended to accomplish the purposes 

of zoning and subdivision regulations. 

Overall, the City desires PUD zoning to produce development that is superior to 

development designed under conventional zoning and subdivision regulations.  

30-2 Purpose  

The purpose of this Article is to provide standards for the Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) zoning district, and to provide the procedures for PUD review and amendment.  

30-3 Authority  

The City Council retains the legislative authority to determine the appropriateness of 

PUD zoning regardless of whether the proposed development plan meets the standards 

prescribed in this Article.  

30-4 Intent    

The intent of this zoning district is to provide an opportunity for the best use of land, 

protection of valuable natural features, provision of larger areas of recreational open space 

and more economical public services by encouraging unified development of land through 

the use of creative and flexible land planning concepts.  Furthermore, the intents of this 

Article are as follows: 

a. to promote the efficient use of land to facilitate a more economic arrangement of uses, 

buildings, traffic circulation systems and utilities;  

b. to encourage the combination and coordination of uses, building forms, building 

relationships and architectural styles in the PUD design;  

93



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 4 of 11 
 

c. to promote the preservation and enhancement of existing natural landscape features, their 

scenic qualities and amenities to the greatest extent possible and utilize such features in a 

harmonious fashion;  

d. to provide flexibility to conventional zoning regulations, upon City Council  approval of 

alternate standards.  Such standards may include minimum setbacks, minimum yard size, 

minimum greenbelts, minimum off-street parking regulations and other regulations to 

achieve the intent described herein;  and, 

e. to provide the developer reasonable assurance of approval before commencing final 

engineering work while providing City officials with reasonable assurance that the 

development will retain the character envisioned at the time of approval.    

30-5 Permitted Uses   

Permitted principal uses in a PUD zone district may include the following: 

a. Dwelling units of a permanent nature for ownership or rental. 

b. Public parks and specialized recreation centers.  These areas may be counted  

toward the requirement for useable open space. 

c. Commercial, office, institutional and industrial. 

d. Any other use permitted by the City Council in accordance with Article 35, Table 

of Permitted Uses may be considered.   

 

30-6 Accessory Uses  

Accessory uses permitted in a PUD zone district may include the following: 

a. Home occupations. 

b. Facilities for the use of residents of the PUD development for recreation, 

children's nursery, kindergarten, laundry or similar services, and any similar 

facility. 

c. Off-street parking or parking garages. 

d. Any other use may be considered by the City Council where said use is 

permissible in accordance with Article 35, Table of Permitted Uses.   

 

94



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 5 of 11 
 

30-7 General Requirements 

The following general requirements shall apply to all PUDs:  

a. The PUD shall be consistent in all respects with the purposes and intents of this 

Article. 

b. The PUD shall consider the goals of the Comprehensive Plan or portion thereof as 

may be applicable. 

c. The PUD shall advance the general welfare of and benefit the City and shall minimize 

to the greatest extent possible adverse impacts upon the surrounding lands. 

d. The PUD shall provide, through desirable arrangement and design, benefits which 

justify deviations from conventional development standards which would otherwise 

apply.  

e. The PUD shall encourage connection between uses and adjoining development where 

applicable and where practical.  Connection between mixed use and residential areas 

is required as a means to provide cohesiveness in the overall development site and 

transportation network.  Cohesiveness shall be provided, for example, through the 

connectedness of land uses, streets, utilities, pedestrian and bicycle paths, greenways 

and signage.  The design of any planned development should reflect great effort by 

the developer to plan land uses so as to blend harmoniously, not only within the 

development site, but with adjacent land uses to ensure compatibility, cohesiveness 

and connectivity.  

f. The PUD shall promote a sense of community, demonstrate flexibility and 

consequently more creative and imaginative design to accommodate planned 

associations of uses developed as integral land use units.  

g. The PUD shall establish the permitted uses, conditional uses and site development 

regulations for the property in accordance with an approved PUD General Plan.   

30-8 Other Applicable Regulations 

 

In addition to applicable local, state and federal regulations, all PUD development shall be in 

compliance with the following Articles of the Land Use & Development Ordinance unless 

excepted herein. 

 

 

95



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 6 of 11 
 

 

 

a. Article 10, General Provisions                         

b. Article 11, Minimum Standards & Required Improvements for Subdivisions & 

Commercial Site Developments, except that Sections 11-6 and 11-11(b) may be modified 

by approved PUD documents. 

c. Article 15, Procedures for Site Plan Review 

d. Article 17, Procedures for Subdivision Review 

e. Article 18, Drainage and Storm Water Management Facilities and Erosion/Sediment 

Control 

f. Article 34, Schedule of Fees 

g. Article 19, Landscape Standards and Tree Protection and Article 33, Sign Provisions, 

except, upon request of the developer, the City may consider modifications to Article 19, 

Landscape Standards and Tree Protection and Article 33, Sign Provisions.  Request for 

said modifications to Article 19 and/or Article 33 shall be submitted with the proposed 

project PUD zoning application. 

30-9 General Provisions  

a. If it is determined that the development is a subdivision according to the laws of 

Alabama, it shall also be reviewed and approved according to the subdivision process of 

the City of Daphne as provided in Article 17, Procedures for Subdivision Review. 

b. No minimum land area shall be required for a PUD development. Lots shall be of 

sufficient size to be used for the purpose intended, provide adequate parking and loading 

facilities in addition to space required for conduct of other operation of the business, and 

otherwise comply with the provisions provided herein. 

c. All property shall be contiguous and under single ownership by a person, partnership, 

corporation, or multiple ownership with participation from all owners with adequate 

frontage serving as the principal means of access to the property and project design 

accommodates all infrastructure, including but not limited to drainage, streets, open 

space, etc. 

d. All open space shall be designated as public, private or common.  If not designated, the 

City shall assume that such open spaces are for common enjoyment of all property 

owners.  

96



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 7 of 11 
 

e. Minimum open space shall be no less than ten (10) percent of the development with 

permanent useable open space determined by the nature of the development and of the 

site. Development of open space shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 11-

14 (h) Common Open Space and Recreation Provisions.  

f. The PUD may utilize alternative roadway designs and standards may be allowed upon 

recommendation by the Public Works Director or designee thereof. 

g. The PUD may permit higher than typical densities of land in areas within the PUD in 

conjunction with provisions for more expansive functional open space and community 

services. 

h. The PUD may promote privacy by permitting the use of gates to control access on private 

streets; this is subject to approval by the City as part of the PUD and subdivision review 

process. 

i. All buildings and/or structures shall observe the minimum separation as allowed by the 

Fire Code.  Lots or building envelopes with a zero (0) side building line must face a 

minimum five (5) foot wide maintenance easement upon the neighboring lot or building 

envelope for maintenance purposes. 

j. Design shall adequately address and plan for environmental protection, preservation and 

enhancement relating to water quality, trees, buffer zones and greenbelt areas, critical 

environmental features, soils, air quality, waterways, topography, and the natural 

character of the land, as well as areas, structures or sites that are of architectural, 

historical, archaeological, or cultural significance.  

k. Landscape design should be superior to that which is typically required by the minimum 

landscaping provisions of the City. 

l. The open space between buildings shall be so designed as to provide adequate privacy, 

safety and aesthetic value. 

m. All structures shall be accessible to service and emergency vehicles. 

n. Private and public streets shall comply with the intent of the PUD and shall be designed 

as approved by the City. 

o. On-street parking may be permitted along easements or streets adequate in size and 

internal to the project, but not along peripheral streets or major thoroughfares that serve 

other uses. 

97



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 8 of 11 
 

p. The outside perimeter building line setback is recommended to be no less than forty (40) 

feet except that the required setback may be increased or decreased by Council where 

deemed appropriate.  An increased setback may be required to mitigate the impact of the 

proposed development on abutting land(s).  Furthermore, a reduced setback may be 

permitted where the proposed use is considered compatible, consistent and otherwise 

harmonious with the abutting land.  

30-10 Large-Scale PUDs 

Certain projects may call for additional requirements due to its location, size or 

combination thereof.  In these instances, it shall be necessary to mitigate the anticipated 

impact of the large-scale planned unit development project.  In no event shall a PUD 

three hundred (300) acres or less be deemed a Large-Scale PUD except where such 

designation is requested by the developer.  It is the intent that projects three hundred 

acres or greater may be deemed a Large-Scale PUD; however, said determination shall 

not only take into consideration the site location and size but also the character, phasing, 

development time frame (example: 5 years, 10 years, 20 years), and/or number of 

developers.   

 

For a project deemed large-scale, the following requirements shall be considered in 

addition to other applicable aforementioned requirements.  

a. In under-served areas, the Large-Scale PUD may be required to provide for public 

facilities and services that are adequate to support the proposed development.  

This may include fire, police, emergency service and/or school facilities.  

b. When necessary to mitigate adverse cumulative transportation impacts, the PUD 

design shall provide for appropriate transportation, appropriate connections to 

areas adjacent to the Large-Scale PUD as well as sidewalks, trails, and roadways.  

30-11 PUD Review Process 

a. PUD Sketch Plan   

Whenever a PUD is proposed the PUD developer or authorized agents thereof shall 

schedule a pre-application meeting with the Department of Community Development 

Director prior to submitting an application.  The intent of the meeting is to discuss the 

scope and intent of the overall concept.  No fee shall be charged for this review and no 

98



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 9 of 11 
 

formal application shall be required, however sufficient information including but not 

limited to a sketch plan that illustrates existing site conditions and conditions of its 

surroundings and the proposed PUD layout and potential development.  

Fees shall be as required for each respective application (i.e., rezoning, site plan, 

preliminary plat, final plat, etc.) in accordance with Article 34, Fees. 

b. Zoning Application  

Any application for PUD zoning shall be considered either rezoning for land inside the 

corporate City limits or pre-zoning for land outside of the corporate limits.  Zoning for a 

PUD district shall follow procedures as described in Article 22, Zoning Amendment.  

Established application procedures and public notice shall be adhered thereto.  Said 

zoning application shall be supplemented by a PUD General Plan and associated PUD 

Documents.  Public hearings for zoning may be held at the same time as associated 

preliminary plat public hearings when appropriate.  Any subdivision review shall be in 

accordance with Article 17, Procedures for Subdivision Review. 

1. Zoning Expiration & Reversion    

Not more than three years after the effective date of the ordinance by which 

the PUD zoning classification was enacted, the developer must submit to the 

Planning Commission a Detailed Development Plan (site plan or preliminary 

plat) for the entire site or a portion thereof.  Failure to submit said Plan(s) to 

the Planning Commission three years after the effective date of the ordinance 

shall automatically cause the expiration of the PUD General Plan. 

Thereafter, the Community Development director or designee may request the 

City Council initiate rezoning of the property in accordance with Section 22-2, 

Reversionary Clause.  Council action shall make void the PUD zoning and all 

related plans shall be automatically nullified.  Said property shall revert to the 

prior zoning district or most similar zoning in effect at the time of reversion.   

2. PUD Documents 

The developer shall submit a document in a form acceptable to the City on 

behalf of the owner, their successors and assigns that will specify the 

following: proposed standards of each land use in the PUD including but not 

limited to minimum setbacks, lot area and width; maximum percentage of 

building coverage; minimum parking regulations; minimum buffer 

requirements; maximum building height; maximum density; maximum floor 

to area ratio; and other site development regulations that may be required by 

the City in determining appropriateness of the proposed PUD.  

99



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 10 of 11 
 

3. Violation of PUD General Plan  

Any deviation from the PUD General Plan which is not approved in 

accordance with this article shall constitute a violation of the ordinance 

establishing that Planned Unit Development District and will cause the 

developer to be subject to procedures and penalties set forth in Section 45-7, 

Penalties and Remedies. 

4. Phasing & Time Limits 

For any PUD to be constructed in multiple phases, the construction of the first 

phase must begin no more than three years from the date of the approval of 

the PUD zoning and PUD General Plan by the City Council.  Failure to begin 

shall result in zoning expiration and reversion as described herein above.  

c. PUD Detailed Development Plan(s) 

After receiving PUD zoning designation, the developer may submit a Master Plan and 

Detailed Development Plans for construction to the Planning Commission. 

Master Plan review for a multi-phased PUD should occur prior to the approval of 

Detailed Development Plans.  The Master Plan shall be of sufficient detail to show 

proposed street and site layout, maximum density (gross and net), stormwater 

management ponds, and common areas.  

The purpose of the Master Plan review is to ensure that each phase of the PUD is 

consistent with the approved General Plan, intents, general requirements and general 

provisions of this Article.  Each Detailed Development Plan submittal shall be in 

accordance with the approved PUD General Plan, approved Master Plan and processed in 

accordance with Article 15, Site Plan Review or Article 17, Subdivision Review as 

applicable.   

Where the developer seeks to change or modify an approved master plan, a modified 

PUD master plan shall be submitted to the Planning Commission for review.  Upon 

approval of said modified PUD master plan, the developer shall then submit Detailed 

Development Plans for approval.  

Once Detailed Development Plans have been approved by the Planning Commission, 

minor changes may be approved administratively; however, major changes shall be 

considered for approval by the Planning Commission. 

1. Amendments to Plan(s) 

Modifications are permissible where in conformity with the PUD General 

Plan.  Lack of conformity shall not be permitted.  Non-conforming 

100



ORDINANCE 2015-17  AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-54/PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT   Page 11 of 11 
 

modifications shall not be acted upon until the City Council has granted 

approval of said changes in the zoning amendment process.   

 

2. Final Detailed Plan(s)  

Upon receiving final approval of PUD Detailed Development Plan(s) from the 

Planning Commission said plan(s) shall be recorded by the developer in the 

Office of the Judge of Probate in Baldwin County.  

All other sections, articles and/or content of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development 

Ordinance shall remain the same and shall be unchanged by this ordinance. 

SECTION IV: CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES  

That any Ordinance heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama, which is in 

conflict with this ordinance, be and is hereby replaced to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION V: SEVERABILITY 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any 

court of competent jurisdiction such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 

provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.  

SECTION VI: EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS _________ DAY OF _____________2015. 

 

_________________________________ 

                      Dane Haygood, Mayor 

  

Attest: 

_________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

101



ORDINANCE 2015-18 
 

 Appropriating Funds for Donette Loop Properties Drainage Repair-
Additional Appropriation 

 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, several properties on Donette Loop have had drainage issues with the last 
occurrence being during the 16.5" rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve the health, 
safety, and convenience of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, this drainage project is NOT eligible for FEMA reimbursement; and 
 
WHEREAS, monies were appropriated in Ordinance 2014-40- $147,938 based upon 
the estimated project cost and  
 
WHEREAS, the project was bid and additional monies - $32,620 will be needed to 
complete the project (Engineering-$31,337 + Construction-$149,221=$180,558).   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby 
amended to include an additional appropriation in the amount of $32,620 from Capital 
Reserve Fund for the Donette Loop Properties Drainage Repairs project. 
    
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 
___ day of ______, 2015. 
 
 
 
              

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

102



103



104



105



106



107



ORDINANCE 2015-20 
Appropriating Funds for Emergency Watershed Protection for: Old Pump Station – LF, 

Judicial Center – Wacky Shrimp, Palmetto-Creekside, Maizie Gulch-West of Main Street, 
& Canterbury Subdivision 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 
September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, watersheds and their drainage systems located 
within the City of Daphne sustained severe damage and require emergency repairs in order to 
prevent further impacts to the City's watersheds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has made application with the NRCS (Natural Resources 
Conservation Service) through their Emergency Watershed Protection (EWP) program for 75% 
reimbursement of expenses incurred for such private watershed emergency repairs as 
described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, the EWP Projects listed below have been selected by NRCS for funding with the 
City of Daphne as the “Sponsor”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems these private projects key to the recovery 
efforts associated with this rain event and the repair of these private property watershed 
issues is necessary to preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation from the 
General Fund in the amount of $67,393 the total City match for the below EWP Projects: 

NRCS # Site Name Project Total Engineering 
DAP 14-005 Old Pump Station Lake Forest $26,898.00 $5,380.00 $32,278.00

DAP 14-006 Judicial Center-Wacky Shrimp $46,406.00 $9,281.00 $55,687.00

DAP 14-007 Palmetto-Creekside $23,850.00 $4,770.00 $28,620.00

DAP 14-008 Maizie Gulch-West of Main St $105,713.00 $21,143.00 $126,856.00

DAP 14-009 Canterbury-Subdivision $21,773.00 $4,355.00 $26,128.00

Total for all Projects $269,569.00

City Inkind Match 25% $67,392.25  
3. The City will serve solely as EWP Project Sponsor and this is not a Public Works 

Project, the City will assume no short or long-term maintenance/repair responsibility for 
the work performed, all future maintenance/repair will be the responsibility of the private 
property owner. 

4. The Environmental Program Manager/Public Works Director or the Mayor is authorized 
to coordinate application with the NRCS for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign 
and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this _____ 
day of _______________, 2015. 
 
              
Attest:                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

108



109



ORDINANCE 2015-21  
 
 

City Hall Building Maintenance Appropriation: City Hall Back Door Card 
Reader Installation 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, a card reader installation is required on the double back doors of City 
Hall to create an additional employee entrance; and 
 
WHEREAS, this card reader installation will create a second back door entrance for 
City employees and a monitoring system for those who enter that door. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $3,450 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget for the maintenance 
required for the City Hall building. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2015. 
 
         
                                                                       

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Dane Haygood , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

110



ORDINANCE 2015-22 
 

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS: 
 

Design Engineering for Tallent Lane Facility Landfill C&D ADEM Permit 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 
Budget on September 23, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne desires to obtain permitting from Alabama 
Department of Environmental Management (ADEM) for the Tallent Lane Facility to 
be allowed to receive Construction and Demolition materials (C&D); and 
 
WHEREAS,  permitting Tallent Lane Facility for C&D will create a savings of 
approximately $70,000 annually in tipping fees currently paid to Baldwin County 
Solid Waste Authority ; and 
 
WHEREAS, additionally the C&D permitting will provide a facility for the City that 
can receive, process and landfill most debris associated with a natural disaster. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a 
part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget in the amount of $70,300 for Engineering 
services  to complete the required plans for the ADEM Permit for the City’s 
Construction and Demolition Landfill at the Tallent Lane Facility.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2015. 
 
 
             

________________________________                                                                      
Dane Haygood, Mayor 

           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

111



112



113



114



115



116



117


	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Child Abuse Proc
	Child Abuse Month Letter
	Earth Day Proc
	Bayside Chess Team
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	IDB Minutes
	Planning Commissin Minutes
	Public Hearing Set Date Info
	Utility Board Minutes
	YMCA Park Board
	Events Permit - Bayside Medical
	ABC License
	AL League Voting Delegate
	Board of Equalization Nominees Letter
	2015-21 - RES - GOVDEALS.COM-2
	2015-15 - ORD - PRE-ZONE - JUBILEE PROPERTIES
	Backup to 2015-15 - ORD - Legal Descriptions Rezoning 121214
	Backup to 2015-15 - ORD -  Map
	2015-16 - ORD - ANNEXATION - JUBILEE PROPERTIES
	Backup to 2015-16 -ORD - Legal Descriptions Rezoning 121214
	Backup to 2015-16 - ORD - Map
	2015-17 - ORD - AMEND LUDO - Planned Unified Development District Ordinance
	2015-18 - ORD - Donette Loop Drainage-Additional monies-not FEMA proj
	Backup to 2015-18 - ORD
	2015-20 - ORD - NRCS EWP Sites
	Backup to 2015-20 - ORD
	2015-21 - ORD - City Hall Bldg Maint-Back Door Card Reader
	2015-22 - ORD - Tallent Lane CD Landfill- Engineering
	Backup to 2015-22 - ORD



